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July 15, 2025 

John Allen 
Acting Inspector General 
Federal Housing Finance Agency - Office oflnspector General 
400 Seventh Street SW 
Washington, D C  20219 

RE: Request for Conflict-of-Interest Investigation into Director William J. Pulte's 
Issuance of Decision 2025-360 

Dear Acting Inspector General Allen: 

Democracy Defenders Fund (DDF) writes to request that you begin an investigation into 
Federal Housing Finance Agency (FHFA) Director William J. Pulte for violations of the criminal 
conflict of interest law, 18 U.S.C. § 208(a). Director Pulte recently signed Decision 2025-360, 
directing the Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) and the Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) to "prepare a proposal for consideration of cryptocurrency 
as an asset for reserves in ... single family mortgage loan risk assessments" 1 at a time at which 
he appears to have held over a million dollars in cryptocurrency and over five million dollars in 
cryptocurrency mining company stock.2 Given the potential impact Decision 2025-360 could 
have on Director Pulte's investments, there is a serious risk his involvement may have violated 
18 U.S.C. § 208. To that end, DDF respectfully requests that you initiate an investigation into 
whether Director Pulte violated Federal law. 

Background 

Director Pulte was appointed to serve as the head of the FHF A in March of this year. As 
part of his nomination, Director Pulte revealed that he owned between $500,000 and $1 million 
in Bitcoin, $500,000 and $1 million in Solana, and between $5 million and $25 million in Mara 
Holdings, Inc., a publicly traded Bitcoin mining company.3 Director Pulte did not agree to divest 
these assets as part of his nomination process,4 and to date no documents are publicly known to 
exist to suggest that he has divested them. 5 

1 Federal Housing Finance Agency, In Re: Order Issuing Directive to Consider Cryptocurrency as an Asset in Risk 
Assessments, Decision No. 2025-360 (June 25, 2025) ("Decision 2025-360"). 
2 Bill J. Pulte, Public Financial Disclosure Report (OGE Form 278e) at 9,11-12 (Jan. 30, 2025), 
https · //extapps2 oge gov/201 (Presiden,nsf(PAS+ Index/CE09FBD7AA287B 1A85258C3C0031FA5F /$FILE(Pulte%2 
0William%20J. %20%20final278.pdf ("Pulte 278") 
3 Id. 
4 Letter from William J. Pulte, Nominee for Director of the Federal Housing Finance Agency, to Sean Dent, 
Designated Agency Ethics Official (Feb. 20, 2025), 
htms:/ / extapps2 .oge. gov /201 /Presiden.nsf/P AS+ Index/862 83 F8206FD5 23 C8525 8C3 C003 20231 /$FILE/Pulte%20W 
illiam%20J. %20%20finalEA.pdf (Pulte EA") 
5 U.S. Office of Government Ethics, Officials' Individual Disclosures Search Collection, 
htms://www.oge.gov/web/OGE.nsf/Officials%20Individual%20Disclosures%20Search%20Co1lection?OpenForm 
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of interest law. In fact, eight days prior to the issuance of Decision 2023-360, Director Pulte 
confirmed in writing that he had received no individualized waiver of the conflict of interest 
law45 and no record of an individualized waiver appears on OGE's website.46

Fourth, and finally, it seems nearly impossible that Director Pulte was unaware of his 
cryptocurrency investments and his responsibility to recuse. He filed a financial disclosure report 
as part of his nomination.47 Subsequently, he entered into an ethics agreement whereby he 
affirmed that it is his "responsibility to understand and comply with " the Federal ethics laws and 
commitments he made to avoid their violation.48 As a Senate-confirmed appointee, Director Pulte 
was required to attend a personal briefing within 15 days of entering government service to 
discuss his "recusal obligations and other commitments addressed in [his] ethics agreement " so 
that he "understands what is specifically required in order to comply " with his commitments and 
ethics obligations.49 Director Pulte confirmed in writing that he received that training.50 

Conclusion 

Millions of mortgages are originated each year. As the 2008 financial crisis shows, 
mortgage origination policies that allow for unnecessary risk can result in catastrophic results. 
That is why it is imperative that decisions about mortgage borrower eligibility be made on the 
best available evidence, not tainted by financial conflicts of interest. Director Pulte's direction to 
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to count cryptocurrency towards borrower eligibility at the same 
time it is reported he holds expansive investments in those same assets poses a simple question: 
who benefits? The American public deserves an answer to that question. As a result, DDF kindly 
requests that you investigate whether Director Pulte's participation in Decision 2025-360 
implicates 18 U.S.C. § 208, and to take appropriate action, including referring the matter to the 
Department of Justice. 

Sincerely, 

Isl 
Virginia Canter 
Chief Counsel for Anticorruption and Ethics 
Democracy Defenders Fund 

Isl 
Christopher Swartz 
Senior Ethics Counsel 
Democracy Defenders Fund 

45 William J. Pulte, Certificate of Ethics Agreement Compliance§ 7 (June 27, 2025), 
https://exta1ms2.oge.gov/201/Presiden.nsf/PAS+ Index/17873 5A9 AB 1AAA1F85258CAD002C2D0E/$FILE/Pulte% 
20EA %20Certification%201%20of%201 pdf ("Pulte Certificate of Compliance"). 
46 OGE Disclosure Collection. 
47 Pulte OGE Form 278. 
48 Pulte Ethics Agreement at 1. 
49 5 C.F.R. § 2638.305(±)(3). 
50 Pulte Certificate of Compliance§ 9. 
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